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From: ASCC New Claims
To: Davenport, Michelle L.; Blakley, Sharon; lakeysha.walker@ardot.gov
Cc: Kathryn Irby
Subject: CLAIM: Tyrone Grider v. ArDOT, Claim No. 241401
Date: Thursday, February 22, 2024 10:57:00 AM
Attachments: Tyrone Grider ArDOT agency ltr .pdf

Tyrone Grider Claim.pdf

Please see attached. Contact Kathryn Irby with any questions.
 
Thank you,
Caitlin
 
Caitlin McDaniel
Administrative Specialist II
Arkansas State Claims Commission
101 East Capitol Avenue, Suite 410
Little Rock, Arkansas 72201
(501) 682-1619
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ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
 

(501)682-1619 
FAX (501)682-2823 

 
 

101 EAST CAPITOL AVENUE 
SUITE 410 

LITTLE ROCK, AR 72201-3823 

KATHRYN IRBY 
DIRECTOR 

 

Note to Claimant or Claimant’s counsel: The Claims Commission copied you on this correspondence to provide 
you with confirmation that your claim has been processed and served upon the respondent agency. 

 

February 22, 2024 
 
 
Ms. Michelle Davenport                                                                             (via email)  
Arkansas Department of Transportation 
Post Office Box 2261 
Little Rock, Arkansas 72209 
 
 
RE: Tyrone Grider v. Arkansas Department of Transportation 

Claim No.  241401 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Dear Ms. Davenport, 
 
  Enclosed please find a copy of the above-styled claim filed against the Arkansas 
Department of Transportation. Pursuant to the Arkansas Rules of Civil Procedure, as well as 
Claims Commission Rule 2.2, you have thirty days from the date of service in which to file a 
responsive pleading. 
 
  Your responsive pleading should include your agency number, fund code, appropriation 
code, and activity/section/unit/element that this claim should be charged against, if liability is 
admitted, or if the Claims Commission approves this claim for payment. This information is 
necessary even if your agency denies liability. 
 
      Sincerely, 
 
      Kathryn Irby 
 
 
ES:  cmcdaniel 
 
cc:   Tyrone Grider, Claimant (w/o encl.) (via email) 
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From: ASCC New Claims
To:
Bcc: Kathryn Irby
Subject: Tyrone Grider v. ArDOT, Claim No. 241401
Date: Thursday, February 22, 2024 10:57:00 AM
Attachments: Tyrone Grider ArDOT agency ltr .pdf

Dear Mr. Grider,
 
Attached please find a copy of the letter sent with your claim to the Arkansas Department of
Transportation.
 
Thank you,
Caitlin
 
Caitlin McDaniel
Administrative Specialist II
Arkansas State Claims Commission
101 East Capitol Avenue, Suite 410
Little Rock, Arkansas 72201
(501) 682-1619
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From: Blakley, Sharon D.
To: ASCC Pleadings
Cc: Wilkins, Jay D.
Subject: Grider v ARDOT Claim 241401 ANS-MTD
Date: Thursday, March 21, 2024 10:17:22 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Grider.241401.ANS-MTD.2024.03.21.pdf

Please acknowledge receipt of the attached Answer & Motion to Dismiss for the
referenced claim.
 
 
 
Sharon D. Blakley
ARDOT - Legal Administrator
(501) 569-2022 fax (501)569-2164
Sharon.Blakley@ardot.gov
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March 21, 2024 

Tyrone Grider 
 

 
Re: Tyrone Grider v. Arkansas Dept. of Transportation 

Claim No. 241401 
 
Dear Tyrone Grider: 
 

Reference is made to the subject claim.  The purpose of this letter is to inform you that the Arkansas 
Department of Transportation (Department) has filed an Answer and Motion to Dismiss your claim with the 
Arkansas State Claims Commission.  Enclosed, you will find a copy of the Answer and Motion to Dismiss that 
contains the legal arguments that support the Department’s position.   

Please know this is not the final decision regarding your claim.  The handling of your claim, as well as 
the final decision, is made by the Arkansas State Claims Commission.  If you have questions concerning when a 
decision will be issued, you can contact them at (501) 682-1619.   

If you need to submit additional information to the Arkansas State Claims Commission or if you wish to 
dispute the Motion to Dismiss, please do so in writing because this provides a record of your submission.  Their 
address is 101 E Capitol Avenue, #410, Little Rock, AR 72201.  The law requires that you provide a copy to our 
Legal Division so that we are aware of the information as well.  Our address is Arkansas Department of 
Transportation, Legal Division, P.O. Box 2261, Little Rock, AR  72203.   

One other point to make is that if you need legal advice, none of the Department’s attorneys can provide 
it to you or even discuss the merits of your claim over the phone or by email.  The reason for this, is that we 
represent the Arkansas Department of Transportation.  If you need legal advice, please contact your own attorney.   

If you have any questions, concerns, or you would like additional information concerning this process, 
please contact Jay D. Wilkins at (501) 569-2277. We appreciate your patience as we seek a resolution to this 
disagreement through the process that has been established by State law.    

       Sincerely, 

 
 
 
       Jay D. Wilkins     
       Staff Attorney, Arkansas Dept of Transportation 
 
Enclosure 
 
cc: Katherine Irby, Director 

Arkansas State Claims Commission  (via email) 
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BEFORE THE STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
OF THE STATE OF ARKANSAS 

 
 
TYRONE GRIDER CLAIMANT 

 
V.      CLAIM NO.  241401 

 
ARKANSAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  RESPONDENT 

 
 

 ANSWER AND MOTION TO DISMISS 
 
 

COMES THE RESPONDENT, Arkansas Department of Transportation, by and through 

its Staff Attorneys, Jay D. Wilkins and Helen Newberry, and for its Answer and Motion to Dismiss 

states the following: 

1. The Respondent denies all allegations of the Complaint not admitted herein. 

2. The Claimant's damage, if any, was not caused by negligence of the Arkansas 

Department of Transportation or its employees. 

3. Affirmatively pleading, the Respondent states, “There are almost 16,000 miles 

of State Highway in Arkansas. It is impossible to predict when and where a pothole will 

develop, therefore encountering a pothole is a risk assumed by the public in general as a part 

of travel.  Historically and legally, the Commission will not award damages caused by a 

pothole unless a Claimant can show some negligence on the part of the Respondent.  Such 

proof of negligence must generally include facts to indicate that the Respondent had prior 

knowledge of the pothole, yet the Respondent failed to respond within a reasonable amount 

of time to repair the pothole.” Claimant has not provided any such evidence, therefore the 

claim should be denied and dismissed.  
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4. The State is not a no-fault insurer of the general public.  Without any claim and 

proof of negligence on the part of the Respondent, the State should not be liable for Claimant’s 

damages. 

5. A Claim for Negligence requires a duty, breach, damages, and causation.  

Chambers v. Stern, 347 Ark. 395, 406, 64 S.W.3d 737, 744 (2002); Prosser and Keeton on 

Torts, Ch. 5, § 30. Arkansas is a fact-pleadings state. Claimant has not stated facts sufficient 

to support a claim for these elements of negligence. 

6. Claimant is required to exhaust all remedies pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 19-

10-302. 

7. Claimant has failed to state a claim against the Respondent for which relief can 

be granted.  This matter should be denied and dismissed pursuant to Arkansas Rules of Civil 

Procedure, Rule 12(b)(6). 

   WHEREFORE, the Respondent prays for dismissal of the Complaint, for its 

costs, and for all other proper relief to which it may be entitled. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,   
ARKANSAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  

  
       
       By: ______________________________ 
      Jay D. Wilkins AR Bar No. 2022067 
      Staff Attorney 
      (501) 569-2277 
      jay.wilkins@ardot.gov 
      Helen Newberry AR Bar No. 2018101 
      Staff Attorney 
      (501) 569-2003 
      helen.newberry@ardot.gov 
      Arkansas Department of Transportation 
      P. O. Box 2261 
      Little Rock, AR  72203-2261 
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BEFORE THE ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
 
TYRONE GRIDER CLAIMANT 
 
V. CLAIM NO. 241401 
 
ARKANSAS DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION  RESPONDENT 
 
 

ORDER 

 Now before the Arkansas State Claims Commission (the “Commission”) is the motion 

filed by the Arkansas Department of Transportation (the “Respondent”) to dismiss the claim of 

Tyrone Grider (the “Claimant”). Based upon a review of the claim file, including Respondent’s 

motion, and the law of the State of Arkansas, the Commission hereby finds as follows: 

1. Claimant filed the instant claim, alleging damage to Claimant’s vehicle from a 

pothole. 

2. Respondent filed a motion to dismiss, arguing, inter alia, that Claimant failed to 

show that Respondent had prior knowledge of a pothole yet failed to respond within a reasonable 

amount of time to repair it. Respondent asked for the claim to be dismissed pursuant to Rule 

12(b)(6) of the Arkansas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

3. Claimant did not respond to the motion.  

4. In reviewing this motion to dismiss, the Commission must treat the facts alleged 

in the complaint as true and view them in a light most favorable to the Claimant. See Hodges v. 

Lamora, 337 Ark. 470, 989 S.W.2d 530 (1999). All reasonable inferences must be resolved in 

favor of the Claimant, and the complaint must be liberally construed. See id. However, the 

Claimant must allege facts, not mere conclusions. Dockery v. Morgan, 2011 Ark. 94 at *6, 380 

S.W.3d 377, 382. The facts alleged in the complaint will be treated as true, but not “a plaintiff’s 
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theories, speculation, or statutory interpretation.” See id. (citing Hodges, 337 Ark. 470, 989 

S.W.2d 530 (1999)). 

5. The Commission agrees with Respondent that dismissal of this claim is proper. 

Claimant did not allege any facts regarding Respondent’s prior knowledge of a pothole or failure 

to repair it within a reasonable amount of time. Respondent is unable to monitor every part of the 

state highway system at all times. As stated by Respondent in the motion to dismiss, 

encountering a pothole is a risk assumed by the public in general as a part of travel. In the 

absence of evidence that Respondent had prior knowledge of the pothole that caused Claimant’s 

damage and failed to repair it in a reasonable amount of time, the existence of a pothole is 

insufficient to establish liability. 

6. As such, Respondent’s motion to dismiss is GRANTED, and Claimant’s claim is 

DISMISSED WITHOUT PREJUDICE. 
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IT IS SO ORDERED.       

        
     _______________________________________ 

ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
Solomon Graves 

         
      _______________________________________ 
      ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 

Dee Holcomb 

       
      _______________________________________ 

ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
Henry Kinslow, chair 

 
      DATE: June 14, 2024 
 

Notice(s) which may apply to your claim 
 

(1) A party has forty (40) days from transmission of this Order to file a Motion for Reconsideration or a Notice of 
Appeal with the Claims Commission. Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-211(a)(1). If a Motion for Reconsideration is 
denied, that party then has twenty (20) days from the transmission of the denial of the Motion for Reconsideration 
to file a Notice of Appeal with the Claims Commission. Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-211(a)(1)(B)(ii). A decision of 
the Claims Commission may only be appealed to the General Assembly. Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-211(a)(3). 

 
(2) If a Claimant is awarded less than $15,000.00 by the Claims Commission at hearing, that claim is held forty (40) 

days from the date of disposition before payment will be processed. See Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-211(a). Note: 
This does not apply to agency admissions of liability and negotiated settlement agreements. 

 
(3) Awards or negotiated settlement agreements of $15,000.00 or more are referred to the General Assembly for 

approval and authorization to pay. Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-215(b). 
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From: Kathryn Irby
To:  Newberry, Helen A.; Wilkins, Jay D.
Cc: Blakley, Sharon; Mika Tucker
Subject: ORDER: Grider v. ArDOT, Claim No. 241401
Date: Wednesday, June 19, 2024 8:38:00 PM
Attachments: C46--Grider v. ArDOT, 241401.pdf

Mr. Grider, Mr. Wilkins, and Ms. Newberry, please see attached order entered by the
Commission. To the extent that either party disagrees with the order, please review the text
box at the end of the order, along with the referenced statutes.
 
If either party will be submitting another filing related to this claim pursuant to Ark. Code Ann.
19-10-211, that filing can be transmitted via mail to the below address or via email to
asccpleadings@arkansas.gov.
 
Thanks,
Kathryn Irby
 
 
Arkansas State Claims Commission
101 East Capitol Avenue, Suite 410
Little Rock, Arkansas 72201
(501) 682-1619
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To whom this may concnern: 

I am submitting this letter to formally contest the decision made regarding my claim. The 
claim in question was submitted on February 7, 2024. On January 30, 2024, I received a call 
from my wife, Ledora Grider, at approximately 4:00 am, informing me about an incident 
where she hit a pothole while driving on I-30 E to Loomis. Upon hearing this, I rushed to her 
aid, only to encounter the same pothole on I-30 E, resulting in damage to my 2005 Dodge 
Magnum SXT as well. Estimates were obtained from Firestone, Goodyear, and Chilango’s 
Tire Shop, revealing issues with both inner and outer tie rods, as well as weakening front 
struts. Recommendations for repairs included wheel alignment, replacement of right 
outer/inner tie rod ends and left inner/outer tie rods, standard strut replacement, ball 
joints, complete strut assembly, strut labor, a new DieHard Gold battery, and a premium 
battery installation package. The total recommended repairs are as follows: 

Firestone: $4,643.79 

Goodyear: $1,541.91 

Chilango’s Tire Shop: $1,855.18 
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
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